
 

Wabush, Newfoundland  
 

 

Historical Sketch 

Christ Church Presbyterian Church in Wabush, Newfoundland was closed c.1995. 

 

Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Session 

1983-8012  1970-1983   Session minutes (microfilm) 



 

Walkerton, Ontario  

Knox Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

Knox Presbyterian Church in Walkerton, Ontario was formed in 1886 from the amalgamation of 

Free St. John's Church and St. Paul's Church, both in the Walkerton area.  Free St. John's 

Presbyterian Church was established in 1851 within the United Presbyterian Church, while St. 

Paul's Presbyterian Church was established in 1873 within the Presbyterian Church in Canada in 

Connection with the Church of Scotland. Both became part of The Presbyterian Church in 

Canada in 1875, and their desire to amalgamate was approved in 1886. The amalgamated 

congregation took the name Knox Presbyterian Church and continued to worship out of the Free 

St. John's building. The St. Paul's building was sold to the Methodists. In 1925, the congregation 

voted to remain within The Presbyterian Church in Canada. 

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1973-8055  1853-1900   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1973-8055  1896-1899   Marriages (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1973-8055  1857-1899   Session minutes (microfilm) 

 

 

Publications and Histories 

1973-4119  1926    Knox Church, Walkerton: Its Founding  

       and Development, 1851-1926 

           20 pgs., ill. (2 copies) 

1973-4119  1951    Knox Church, Walkerton: Its Founding  

       and Development, 1851-1951  

           29 pgs., ill. (2 copies)  

1992-4122  1986    A History of Knox Church, 1886-1986 

           139 pgs., ill. 

 



 

Wallaceburg, Ontario 

Knox Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Knox Presbyterian Church (Wallaceburg, Ont.) was established in 1854 when the first church 

building was opened and dedicated. The congregation was operated as a mission until 1879 when 

they inducted their first minister, the Rev. D. McKerracher. In 1881 the building was moved to a 

new location on Duncan St., it was unfortunately destroyed by fire in 1889. A new church 

building was opened and dedicated in March of 1901. The congregation of Knox Presbyterian 

chose to remain with The Presbyterian Church in Canada in 1925. However, their minister the 

Rev. M. C. Tait chose to enter Union.  

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 

 

Session 

1982-4008-1-1  1881 Mar.-1901 Apr.  Session Minutes 

1982-4008-1-2  1901 May-1948 Sept.  Session Minutes 

Includes correspondence and 

newspaper clippings re Rev. Lane's 

farewell 

1982-4008-1-3  1949 Mar.-1965 Oct.  Session Minutes 

1982-4008-1-4  1965 Nov.-1979 Nov.  Session Minutes 

1982-4008-1-5  1938    Order of Service 

 

Publications and Histories 

1982-4008-1-6  1930    A Short History 

By the Rev. D. J. Lane for the 75th 

anniversary, 24pp., ill., 2 copies 



 

Walpole, Ontario  

Chalmers Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

Chalmers Presbyterian Church in Walpole, Ontario was founded in the mid-1800s. The first 

minister to the area was The Rev. William Bethune, who resided on the tenth concession.  After 

his retirement, The Rev. John McRobie was inducted into the charge, in 1857.  A church building 

was constructed over several years and opened in 1863.  

 

Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1980-8005  1844-1845, 1847-1977  Baptisms (microfilm) 

1980-8005  1896-1935   Marriages (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1980-8005  1843-1884   Session records (microfilm) 

1985-4031-1-3  1843-1854   Copies of Session records 

       (photocopies made 1949) 

1980-8005  1874-1958   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1985-4031-1-5  1888-1899   Annual Reports 

1985-4031-1-4  1900-1943   Annual Reports 

1985-4031-1-2  1944-1962, 1966, 1967, 1971 Annual Reports 

1980-8005  1874-1979   Communion Roll (microfilm) 

 

Congregation 

1980-8005  1895-1949   Annual Meeting minutes (microfilm) 

 

Publications and Histories 

1985-4031-1-1  1938    Chalmers (Stone) Church Jubilee, 1863- 

       1938 

           11pgs., ill (photocopy) 

 

 



 

Warkworth, Ontario  

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church in Warkworth, Ontario dates from 1840, when Rev. William 

Reid of Grafton and Colborne visited and ministered to the Presbyterians in the area around 

Warkworth (Percy Township).  Shortly after they were organized into a congregation by the 

Presbytery of Cobourg within the "Free" Presbyterian Church of Canada.  From 1858 to 1864, the 

congregation (known at that time as the Percy Congregation) was joined with the congregation in 

Seymour. In 1865 they opened a new church building. From 1872 until 1884, they were linked 

with the congregation in Campbellford.  During 1893 and early 1894, the church was enlarged 

and rebuilt.  At the time of Church Union in 1925, the congregation voted to remain within The 

Presbyterian Church in Canada. In 1947, St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Warkworth was 

linked with St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Hastings as a two-point charge. 

 

Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1991-8005  1857-1972   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1991-8005  1894-1959   Marriages (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1991-8005  1854-1915   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1991-8005  1925-1991   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1991-8005  1858-[198-?]   Communion Roll (microfilm) 

 

Board of Managers/Congregation 

1991-8005  1874-1923   Board of Managers and Congregational  

       Meeting minutes (microfilm) 

1991-8005  1924-1962   Congregational minutes (microfilm) 

 

Congregational Organizations 

1991-8005  1956-1989   Blue Banner minutes 

 

Other records 

1991-8005  [19--]    Various records and articles 

 

 



 

Warwick, Ontario 

Knox Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

The congregation of Knox Presbyterian Church in Warwick Township, Ontario was formed 

c.1854, when members gathered for worship in the school house located on the 4
th
 concession 

near Watford. Other Presbyterians gathered for worship in a Congregational Chapel on the Main 

Road. Both groups appear to have been served by the same minister, who lived in a manse in 

Warwick Village. A church building was constructed in 1869 and officially opened on the first 

Sunday of 1870.  At the time of Church Union in 1925, the congregation voted to remain within 

The Presbyterian Church in Canada. The congregation was dissolved on November 16, 1983. 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Congregation 

1973-8056  1868-1900   Congregational Meeting minutes  

       (microfilm) 

 

Board of Trustees  

1973-8056  1854-1905   Board of Trustee minutes (microfilm) 

 

Publications and Histories 

1977-4030  1969    100 Years in the Life of Knox  

       Presbyterian Church,Warwick 

           12 pgs., ill. 

 



 

Washago, Ontario 

Washago Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Washago Presbyterian Church was established in 1874 as a mission station of the Presbyterian 

Church of Canada in connection with the Church of Scotland.  In 1878 it was linked with 

Gravenhurst and Severn Bridge to form a three-point charge.  In 1882 Washago was linked with 

Ardtrea and Severn Bridge, and reverted to being a mission station.  In 1886 it was served by an 

ordained minister and reverted again to a student mission station in 1888.  In 1909 it was erected 

as an augmented charge. 

 

File No.  Date     Description 

 

Publications and Histories 

1973-4017  [ca. 1949]   Historical sketch, 1874-1949 

   Typescript, 5pp. 

 



 

Waterdown, Ontario 

Knox Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Knox Presbyterian Church (Waterdown, Ont.) was established in 1830 under the direction of the 

Rev. William King. A church building was constructed at this time. Rev. King also organized the 

congregation at Nelson and the two congregations were united as a joint charge under the Church 

of Scotland. During the Disruption, a new Presbyterian congregation was formed in Waterdown 

as a part of the Free Church. This congregation was called Knox. In 1846, a new frame church 

was built and the Church of Scotland congregation took on the name St. Andrew’s. In 1874, the 

Presbyterian denominations united and St. Andrew’s and Knox became one congregation under 

the name Knox. During the time of Church Union in 1925, Knox, Waterdown chose not to join 

the United Church but to remain a part of The Presbyterian Church in Canada. In 1980, the 

congregation of Knox had grown sufficiently that it was able to become a self sustaining one 

point charge. Thus, the longstanding unity with the church at Nelson was ended.  

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 

   

Vital Statistics 

1986-8013  1875-1984   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1973-8057  1878-1905   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1986-8013  1901-1924   Baptisms (microfilm) 

included in a register of infants, births 

& baptisms (some adults) 

1986-8013  1905-1955   Marriages (microfilm) 

also includes entries for Wellington 

Square. 

1986-8013  1905-1943   Deaths (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1991-4042  1846-1877   Session Minutes 

           Transcribed copy made by Robert  

           Lalonde, 1990. 

1986-8013  1902-1936   Communion Roll (microfilm) 

 

Congregation 

1991-4042  1884, 1886, 1909, 1911, 1912 Annual reports 

   1917-1923, 1925-1927 

   1958-1964 

1989-4025  1921; 1988   Annual Reports 

1992-4135  1988; 1989   Annual reports 

1994-4041  1991    Annual report 

 

Organizations of the Congregation 

1988-4007-1-1  1957 Mar.-1964 Mar.  Ladies Aid minutes 

1988-4007-1-2  1908-1936   Account book 

1988-4007-1-3  1937    Account book 

   (Oversize) 

1989-4025  1954    W.M.S. Anniversary booklet 



 

Publications and Histories 

1980-4012  1980    One Hundred and Fifty Years 1830- 

1980. Knox Presbyterian Church, 

Waterdown, Ontario. 

1980-4012  1930    Presbyterian Church Waterdown  

Centennial Souvenir 1830-1930. 2 

copies. 

 



 

Waterloo, Ontario 

Knox Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Knox Presbyterian Church (Waterloo, Ont.) was established in 1925 following Church Union. 

The congregation was formed by the non-concurring Presbyterians of St. Paul’s Presbyterian 

Church (est. 1888). The first minister was the Rev. W. G. Richardson. A new church building was 

built in 1927 and it was at this time that the congregation took on the name Knox. The church 

building was extended in 1958. 

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1980-8006  1888-1899   Baptisms (microfilm) 

          St. Paul’s Presbyterian Church 

1982-8011  1926-1968   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1980-8006  1896-1899   Marriages (microfilm) 

          St. Paul’s Presbyterian Church 

1982-8011  1926-1968   Marriages (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1988-4015-1-1  1946 Jan.-1961 Oct.  Session minutes 

1988-4015-1-2  1962 Feb.-1972 Mar.  Session minutes 

1988-4015-1-3  1972 May-1978 Apr.  Session minutes 

1988-4015-1-4  1978 May-1980 May  Session minutes 

1980-8006  1888-1899   Communion Roll (microfilm) 

          St. Paul’s Presbyterian Church 

1982-8011  1925; 1927-1955;  Communion Roll (microfilm) 

   1950-1956; 1963-1967; 

   1968-1972; 1979-1982 

 

Congregation 

1988-4015-2-1  1925-1961   Congregational Meetings - minutes and  

   annual reports 

1988-4015-2-2  1948-1957   Annual Reports 

1988-4015-2-3  1962-1972   Annual Reports 

1988-4015-2-4  1973-1979   Annual Reports 

1988-4015-2-5  1981    Annual Report 

 

Board of Managers 

1988-4015-3-1  1926-1930   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-3-2  1930-1932   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-3-3  1932-1934   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-3-4  1935-1936   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-3-5  1937-1943   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-3-6  1944-1948   Board of Managers minutes and reports 



 

1988-4015-3-7  1949-1952   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-3-8  1953-1955   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-4-1  1957-1959   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-4-2  1976-1977   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-4-3  1978-1981   Board of Managers minutes and reports 

1988-4015-4-4  1939-1955   Board of Managers correspondence 

1988-4015-4-5  1955-1956   Board of Managers correspondence 

1988-4015-4-6  1952-1957   Building Fund Canvas 

Circulars, orders of service, budget 

proposals, correspondence and 

minutes relating to building project for 

renovations and extension.  Includes 

sample material from Grantham 

United Church, 1955 

1988-4015-4-7  1956-1957   Building Fund 

Minutes of Board of Managers, 

congregational meetings, Building 

Fund General Committee and joint 

meetings of Session and Board, 

circulars, reports 

1988-4015-4-8  1957    Building Fund - Canvasser's material 

Instructions for canvassers and 

booklets 

1988-4015-4-9  [1955]    Building Fund - Architectural Plans 

Barnett & Rieder, Architects; Includes 

First Floor Plan; Ground Floor Plan; 

Front Elevation; Lot (sketch plan) 

1988-4015-5-1  1950 Dec.-1954 May  Ladies Aid minutes 

1988-4015-5-2  1954 June-1959 May  Ladies Aid minutes 

1988-4015-5-3  1959 June-1963 Jan.  Ladies Aid minutes 

1988-4015-5-4  1963 Mar.-1969 June  Ladies Aid minutes 

1988-4015-5-5  1969 Oct.-1984 Jan.  Friendship Circle minutes 

 

Publications and Histories 

1974-4072  1974    The Presbyterian Church Waterloo  

   Ontario 1888-1974. 15pp., ill. 2 copies 

1974-4072  1957    Canvass Plan 

Includes photographs and pictures of 

plans for church extension. 

 



 

Watford, Ontario 

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church was established in 1925 when the original St. Andrew’s 

congregation entered the United Church of Canada and the non-concurring Presbyterians 

continued as Watford Presbyterian Church.  In 1940 Watford was linked with Knox, Warwick 

and Thedford Presbyterian Church, Thedford.  In 1961, St. Andrew's United Church was closed 

and the building sold to Watford Presbyterian Church.  The congregation was then re-named St. 

Andrew's Presbyterian Church. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 

 

Session 

1975-4002-1-1  [195-?]    Membership rolls 

1975-4002-1-2  1962 Jan.   Order of Service 

Service of Witness, marking the 

occasion of the return of St. Andrew's 

Church into the Presbyterian Church 

 

Congregation 

1975-4002-1-5  1952    Annual Reports 

1975-4002-1-6  1958-1961   Annual Reports 

1975-4002-1-7  1966-1968   Annual Reports 

1975-4002-1-3  1967-1968   Joint meetings with Thedford and Knox,  

   Warwick 

 

Board of Managers 

1975-4002-1-8  1941 Dec.-1971 Jan.  Board of Managers minutes 

1975-4002-1-4  1961    Proposed agreement with St. Andrew's  

United Church.  

   Relates to the disposition of property 

1975-4002-1-9  1954-1970   Correspondence and reports 

Includes Statistical returns to 

Presbytery and financial 

correspondence 

1975-4002-1-10  1932-1957   Account book 

1975-4002-1-11  1958-1960   Account book 

1975-4002-1-12  1936-1952   Weekly Offerings account book 

1975-4002-1-13  1953-1957   Weekly Offerings account book 

1975-4002-1-16  1961-1969   Weekly Offerings account books  

           10 books; Oversized 

1975-4002-1-17  1970-1972   Weekly Offerings account books 

           5 books; Oversized 

1975-4002-1-18  n.d.    Weekly Offerings account book 

 

Organizations of the Congregation 

1987-4024  1981    W.M.S. Historical Sketch 

          includes list of ministers 

 



 

Publications and Histories 

1975-4002-1-14  c. 1973    Centennial Booklet 

   23pp. ill. 

1975-4002-1-15  1966    Historical Sketch 

   Ms. photocopy; 3pp. 



 

Welland, Ontario 

Crowland Presbyterian Church 

 

Historical Sketch 

Crowland Presbyterian Church (Welland, Ont.) was established in 1834 under the direction of the 

Rev. Angus McIntosh. The congregation met in the local school house until a church building 

was completed in 1858. A new building was constructed in 1896 and relocated in 1960. 

Throughout its history, Crowland has been joined with many different congregations. In 1908, 

Crowland was joined with Port Robinson. In 1918, the congregation ceased to be a mission 

station and became a regular ordained charge. In 1928, the congregation was united with 

Chippawa until 1940. In 1958, the congregation united with St. Davids until uniting with Knox, 

Welland in 1960. 1966 saw the congregation become part of a three point charge with Kirk On-

the-Hill, and Knox. In 1974, Crowland joined with St. Andrew’s, Merriton. Finally, in 1976 

Crowland was joined with Welland Hungarian Presbyterian Church.  

 

Note 

Accession 2002-8028 contains some Marriage information for Crowland Presbyterian Church, 

however, it is unclear which years are covered. 

 

File No.  Date     Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1982-4009-1-2  1909 May-1926 June   Baptisms 

   Contained in Session Minutes 

1982-4009-1-1  1919 June-1924 Aug.   Marriages 

   Contains only 7 entries 

2002-8028  1896-2001    Marriages (microfilm) 

Includes some from Crowland 

Presbyterian Church most 

entries belong to St. Andrew’s 

Presbyterian Church 

(Welland, Ont.) 

 

Session 

1982-4009-1-2  1858 Jan.-1897 May;   Session Minutes 

1904 Oct.-1936 July        There is a break in the session  

minutes due to the loss of the 

volume after the death of the 

Clerk of Session.  Session 

Minutes resume in 1904.  

Also includes Membership 

Roll, Baptisms 

1982-4009-1-2  1870-1921;1919-1927   Membership Rolls 

   Contained in Session Minutes 

1982-4009-1-3  1965-1969    Communion Roll 

 

Congregation 

1982-4009-1-4  1966     Annual Report 

 

 



 

Publications and Histories 

1995-4001  1994     Crowland Presbyterian Church  

   1834-1994. History. ill. 



 

Welland, Ontario 

Knox Presbyterian Church 

 

Historical Sketch 

 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Publications 

1999-4009  1998    Fifty Years: A Modestly Illustrated  

       Sketch of Knox Presbyterian Church,  

       Welland, Ontario, 1948-1998



 

Welland, Ontario 

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church, Welland, was established as a mission station of the Canada 

Presbyterian Church in 1862 and was erected as a congregation in 1879. In 1872, the Rev. 

Hancock was the first minister to be inducted. A new church building was constructed and 

opened on January 5, 1890. The congregation became self supporting in 1907. St. Andrew’s 

chose not to enter Church Union in 1925. 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

2002-8028  1885-2000   Baptisms (microfilm) 

2002-8028  1896-2001   Marriages (microfilm) 

Includes some from Crowland 

Presbyterian Church 

2002-8028  1987-2002   Burials (microfilm) 

 

Board of Managers 

1973-4011  1907    Mortgage 

 

Congregation 

1973-4011  1880    Congregational Meetings minutes 

   7pp. fragile 

 

Publications and Histories 

1973-4011  1880; 1939   Golden Jubilee of St. Andrew's  

Presbyterian Church, Welland, 

Ontario, 1939  [ca. 1939]; 16pp. ill. 

1973-4011  1939    Historical sketch, typescript, 2pp. 

1984-4024  1984    St. Andrew’s Presbyterian Church  

Welland, Ontario. A History: 1834-

1984 ill. 

2007-4028  2006    The Windows of St. Andrew's



 

Wellandport, Ontario 

Wellandport Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Wellandport Presbyterian Church was organized in 1831 and called Chippewa Presbyterian 

Church, under the jurisdiction of the Presbytery of Niagara in connection with the American 

Presbyterian Church.  Around 1845 the congregation of Wellandport entered the Presbyterian 

Church of Canada in connection with the Church of Scotland as part of a joint charge with 

Dunnville.  In 1865 the link with Dunnville was dissolved and Wellandport was linked with St. 

Ann's until 1883.  In 1904 Wellandport was again linked with St. Ann's.  There were some 

difficulties with this union in the 1920s and between 1923 and 1925 Wellandport was without 

regular services.  In 1925 Wellandport voted to remain in the Presbyterian Church in Canada 

while St. Ann's entered the United Church of Canada.  Wellandport was then linked with the 

continuing Presbyterian congregation at Smithville until 1943 when both Smithville and 

Wellandport were linked with St. Andrew's, Beamsville.  In 1945 Wellandport was linked with 

Dunnville and in 1947 the congregation was closed. 

 

 

File No.  Date     Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1973-4002-1-1  1860 Dec.-1940 Sept.   Baptisms 

 

Session 

1973-4002-1-2  1862 Sept.-1943 Sept.   Session minutes 

1973-4002-1-3  1861-1937    Communion Roll 

 

Congregation 

1973-4002-1-4  1866-1920    Congregational Meetings –  

   minutes 

1973-4002-1-5  1921-1942    Congregational Meetings –  

   minutes 

 

Board of Managers 

1973-4002-1-6  1923-1932    Treasurer's Book 

1973-4002-1-7  1932     Budget Statement 

1973-4002-1-8  1936-1939    Insurance policies 

 

Publications and Histories 

1973-4002-1-9  1931     One Hundred Years 1831-1931   

Rev. D.H. Currie 1931; 16pp. 

ill. (2 copies) 

 

 



 

Wellwood, Manitoba 

Zion Presbyterian Church 
 

See Knox-Zion Presbyterian Church (Carberry, Manitoba) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

West Brant, Ontario 

West Brant Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

West Brant Presbyterian Church was founded in 1868 as a pastoral charge linked with the church 

in North Brant (Malcolm). A stone church building was constructed c.1869.  By 1878, the link 

with North Brant was dissolved and the West Branch church was joined with Pinkerton.  

Membership in the West Brant Church dwindled in the early 1900s and the church was closed in 

1909.  

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Session 

1999-8026  1867-1908   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1999-8026  1868-1905   Communion Roll (microfilm) 

 



 

West Flamborough, Ontario  

West Flamborough Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

The congregation of West Flamborough Presbyterian Church in West Flamborough, Ontario 

dates from 1832, when the Rev. Thomas Christie, a minister with the United Associate Synod of 

the Secession Church of Scotland, arrived to the area from Orkney, Scotland.  He soon 

established a congregation and by 1833 a church building had been constructed.  He served as 

minister to the congregation for many years before passing away in 1870. In 1866, a new stone 

church was built to replace the original frame building. A manse was constructed in 1867. In 

December 1883, the West Flamborough church was joined (with one Kirk Session) with the 

church in Lynden. This relationship continued until the two were separated in 1905. In 1925, the 

congregation voted to remain within The Presbyterian Church in Canada, and was linked as a 

two-point charge with the church in Kirkwall. In 1930, the congregation in Sheffield was added 

to the charge. In 1955, these links were dissolved and West Flamborough continued as a one-

point charge.  

 

[Note: From the mid-1820s, ministers of the Presbyterian Church of Canada in Connection with 

the Church of Scotland (Rev. George Sheed and later Rev. Mark Y. Stark) had served the area, 

establishing the Presbyterian Congregation of West Flamboro and Ancaster (this congregation 

was the fore-runner of St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church in Ancaster, Ontario; see the entry for 

that congregation for a listing of records available)]. 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1987-8026  [1832?]-1986   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1987-8026  1836-1860, 1922-1964  Marriages (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1987-8026  1837-1928   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1987-8026  1833-1911   Communion Roll (microfilm) 

 

Congregation/Board of Managers 

1987-8026  1857-1903   Congregational and Board of Managers  

       meeting minutes (microfilm) 

 



 

West Gwillimbury, Ontario 

West Gwillimbury Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

West Gwillimbury Presbyterian Church, Ontario was established around 1822 and closed around 

1885. 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1973-4055  1857 Aug.-1883 Feb.  Marriages (Oversize) 

all marriages solemnized by the Rev. 

William Fraser. 

 

Publications and Histories 

2002-4006  2001    We Must Tell the Stories: The  

Presbyterian Churches of Bradford West 

Gwillimbury. 148pp., ill.  

Relates primarily to the congregation 

of St. John’s Presbyterian Church 

(Bradford, Ont.) but has some 

information relating to the Rev. 

William Fraser and West Gwillimbury 

Presbyterian Church. 

 

 

 



 

West Hill, Ontario  

Melville Presbyterian Church 
 

 

See Melville Presbyterian Church (Toronto, Ont.) 

 



 

West Lorne, Ontario 

Knox Presbyterian Church 
 

See Argyle Presbyterian Church (Crinan, Ont.) 

 

Historical Sketch 

Knox Presbyterian Church (West Lorne, Ont.) was established in 1925 by the non-concurring 

Presbyterians of the West Lorne Presbyterian Church. The congregation became a single point 

charge in May of 2000. It amalgamated with Argyle Presbyterian Church (Crinan, Ont.) 

September 30, 2000. 

 

 



 

Weston, Ontario 

St. Andrew's Humber Heights Presbyterian Church 
 

 

See St. Andrew's Humber Heights Presbyterian Church (Toronto, Ont.) 

 

 



 

Weston, Ontario  

Weston Presbyterian Church 
 

 

See Weston Presbyterian Church (Toronto, Ont.) 

 

 

 



 

Westwood, Ontario 

Francis-Andrew's Presbyterian Church 
 

See St. Andrew’s Presbyterian Church (Norwood, Ont.) 

 

Historical Sketch 

Francis-Andrew’s Presbyterian Church was established in 1925 following Church Union when a 

minority of the Presbyterians of Westwood chose to continue with The Presbyterian Church in 

Canada. Westwood was amalgamated with Norwood on 2 Feb. 1981 after a recommendation of 

Presbytery. 

 

 

 

 



 

Whitechurch, Ontario 

Langside Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Langside Presbyterian Church (Whitechurch, Ont.) was established in 1893 when Whitechurch 

Presbyterian Church (est. 1864) was united with Langside Presbyterian Church (est. 1868). The 

congregation was dissolved and the closing service was held on 28 Aug. 1977. 

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

File No.  Date     Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1977-4006-1-1  1879 Aug.-1976 Apr.   Baptisms 

1977-4006-1-2  1963 June-1967 July   Marriages 

There are only 7 entries in this 

register 

 

Session 

1977-4006-1-3  1879 June-1947 Nov.   Session Minutes 

1977-4006-1-4  1948 Apr.-1977 July   Session Minutes 

1977-4006-1-5  1933;1942    Session Report 

1977-4006-1-6  1927-1941;1950-1973   Communion Roll 

   Water damaged volume 

1977-4006-1-7  1974-1977    Communion Roll 

1977-4006-1-8  1914; 1968    Orders of Service 

 

Congregation 

1977-4006-2-1  1895-1927 Jan.    Board of Managers and  

   Congregational Minutes 

1977-4006-2-2  1927 June-1956 Mar.   Board of Managers and  

   Congregational Minutes 

1977-4006-2-3  1925-1926;1934;1954   Draft Congregational Minutes 

1977-4006-2-4  1919-1943    Treasurer's Account Nook 

   Includes weekly offerings 

1977-4006-2-5  1951-1956    Annual Reports 

1977-4006-2-6  1958-1964    Annual Reports 

1977-4025  1968     Annual Report 

1977-4006-2-7  1972     Annual Report 

1977-4006-2-8  1921-1926;1942   Auditor's Reports 

 

Board of Managers 

1977-4006-2-1  1895-1927 Jan.    Board of Managers and  

   Congregational Minutes 

1977-4006-2-2  1927 June-1956 Mar.   Board of Managers and  

   Congregational Minutes 

 

Organizations of the Congregation 

1977-4006-2-9  1885-1898    W.M.S. Minutes 



 

1977-4006-2-10  1928-1933    W.M.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-2-11  1934 Jan.-1940    W.M.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-2-12  1935-1940    W.M.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-2-13  1940-1943    W.M.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-3-1  1944-1949    W.M.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-3-2  1950-1956    W.M.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-3-3  1957-1971    W.M.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-3-4  1928-1953    W.M.S. Account Book 

   Includes membership roll 

1977-4006-3-5  1954-1974    W.M.S. Account Book 

1977-4006-3-6  1952-1955    W.M.S. Correspondence 

1977-4006-3-7  [c. 1953]    W.M.S. History and the 60th  

   Anniversary 

1977-4006-3-8  1947-1953    Ladies Aid Minutes 

1977-4006-3-9  1913-1919    Y.P.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-4-1  1941 July-1946 Dec.   P.Y.P.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-4-1  1947-1952 Aug. 

1977-4006-4-2  1953-1954    P.Y.P.S. Minutes 

1977-4006-4-3  1940-1954    P.Y.P.S. Membership Roll 

1977-4006-4-4  1959-1963    Children of the Church Minutes 

1977-4006-4-5  1968     Centennial Questionnaire 

   Manuscript, 10pp. 

 

Publications and Histories 

1977-4006-4-6  1914;1968    Historical sketches 

Jubilee souvenir (photocopy). 

Historical sketch (timeline). 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Wiarton, Ontario 

St. Paul's Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

St. Paul's Presbyterian Church in Wiarton, Ontario was established in 1879. In that year, a church 

building was constructed on Gould Street. The first regular minister inducted to the charge was 

the Rev. E.N.B. Millard. In 1891, St. Paul's Presbyterian Church and the Congregational Church 

in Wiarton joined together as a federated congregation. Both buildings used by the two churches 

were then sold and a new church building was constructed on the north-east corner of George and 

Gould Streets. The church was dedicated in March 1892. At the time of Church Union in 1925, 

the congregation voted to remain within The Presbyterian Church in Canada.  

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

** Note: Some un-catalogued material exists in addition to the listing below. See accession 

numbers 1992-4004 and 1992-4181. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1973-8058  1882-1899   Baptisms (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1973-8058  1875-1899   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1989-8008  1898-1988   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1973-8058  1892-1899   Communion Roll (microfilm) 

1991-4020  1991    Order of Service - 100
th
 Anniversary of  

       the Church Building 

 

Congregation 

1973-8058  1883-1899   Board of Managers and Annual  

       Congregational Meeting minutes  

       (microfilm) 

1973-4129  1909, 1925   Annual Reports 

 

 

Publications and Histories 

1973-4129  1929    Historical Sketch of St. Paul's  

       Presbyterian Church, Wiarton 

          16 pgs. 

 

 



 

Wilton, Ontario 

Wilton Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Wilton Presbyterian Church was established as a mission station of the Canada Presbyterian 

Church during the 1870s and was linked with Glenvale and Harrowsmith until 1919, when 

Harrowsmith was dissolved, and with Glenvale alone until 1925.  In 1925, Wilton and Glenvale 

were linked with Ernestown and Camden East in a four-point charge.  Between 1936 and 1941 

there were several re-alignments of congregations in the area.  In 1936 Deseronto, Camden East, 

Wilton, Glenvale, Ernestown and Sunbury were linked as one pastoral charge.  In 1937 Deseronto 

and Sunbury were set up as a two-point charge and the other four were designated mission 

stations with student supply.  In 1938 Deseronto, Camden East and Ernestown were linked as a 

three-point charge, while Wilton, Glenvale and Sunbury were linked as a three-point charge.  In 

1940, Sunbury, Glenvale and Wilton were placed as student mission fields under Deseronto and 

in 1941 Wilton was dissolved. 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1973-4028-1-1  1923-1924   Baptismal Certificates 

   Counterfoils 

 

Session 

1973-4028-1-2  1937-1943   Session minutes and Church Register 

Includes:  Sunbury Session minutes 

1938, Wilton Session minutes 1938, 

Baptisms 1938 June-1939 May, 

Marriages 1938 Aug.-1939 Sept. and 

Wilton, Sunbury, Glenvale 

Communion Roll 1938-1943 

1973-4028-1-3  1872-1919   Communion Roll 

1973-4028-1-4  1919-1924   Communion Roll 

 

Congregation 

1973-4028-1-5  1901-1909   Congregational Meetings - minutes 

Also includes financial accounts 

1884-1904 

1973-4028-1-6  1930-1938   Congregational Meetings - minutes 

Also includes financial accounts 

1930-1938 

 

 

 

 



 

Winchester, Ontario 

St. Paul's Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

St. Paul's Presbyterian Church in Winchester, Ontario was established as a mission station in 

1857. Construction on a church building was begun in 1858, but not completed until 1860.  It was 

a frame building and was known as "The White Church". In 1864, its status was elevated from 

that of a mission station to a full congregation. At that time, the Rev. William Bennet was called 

to serve as minister. By the 1890s the frame church was too small, and it was decided to sell it 

and construct a larger, brick church. The new church was opened and dedicated on June 2, 1895. 

At the time of Church Union, the congregation voted to remain part of The Presbyterian Church 

in Canada. The 100
th
 anniversary of the church was celebrated on June 16, 1957. During the year 

extensive renovations to the church building were carried out. 

 

** Note: Some un-catalogued material exists in addition to the listings below. See accession 

#1992-4141. 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1992-8027  1926-1992   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1992-8027  1907-1991   Marriages (microfilm) 

1995-8010  1935-1994   Marriages (microfilm) 

1992-8027  1966-1991   Deaths (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1992-8027  1902-1970   Communion Roll (microfilm) 

1976-4052  1902    Order of Service – Peace, Thanksgiving  

       Service for the termination of the  

       Anglo-Boer War 

1976-4052  1901    Order of Service – Memorial Service for  

       Queen Victoria 

1976-4052  1957    Order of Service – Centennial  

 

Board of Managers 

1992-8027  1898-1975   Board of Managers (microfilm) 

 

Publications and Histories 

1976-4052  1957    St. Paul's Presbyterian Church,  

       Winchester "Centennial Souvenir" 

           13 pgs., ill. 

 



 

Windsor, Ontario  

Knox Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

Knox Presbyterian Church in Windsor, Ontario was organized as a congregation by the 

Presbytery of Chatham within The Presbyterian Church in Canada, in 1920. The congregation 

originated as a branch Sunday School established by St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church in 

Windsor in 1908. Property was purchased on the south-west corner of McEwan and London and 

in 1910 a building was constructed. In 1919, regular worship services were held as well. By this 

time, however, the building was becoming too small. Property across the street was therefore 

purchased, where a basement was dug, and the building was moved across the street and over this 

basement.  In 1925, the congregation voted against Church Union and decided to remain a part of 

The Presbyterian Church in Canada. From 1935 to 1953, Knox was linked with St. Andrew's 

Presbyterian Church in Amherstburg as a two-point charge.  Lots for a new church were 

purchased in 1951 at the corner of Wyandotte and Askin, and the new church building was 

dedicated June 23, 1957. 

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1986-8014  1920-1979, 1982-1986  Baptisms (microfilm) 

1986-8014  1921-1986   Marriages (microfilm) 

1986-8014  1936-1947, 1977-1986  Burials (microfilm) 

 

Session  

1986-8014  1920-1986   Session minutes (microfilm) 

 

Board of Managers/Congregation 

1986-8014  1920-1947, 1963-1985  Board of Managers and Congregational  

       Meeting minutes (microfilm) 

 

Publications and Histories 

1974-4073  1970    50
th
 Anniversary Pictorial Directory 

1995-4004  1995    Knox Presbyterian Church, Windsor,  

       Ontario: 75
th
 Anniversary 

           164 pgs, ill. 



 

Windsor, Ontario  

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church in Windsor, Ontario was formed in 1857.  Prior to the 

construction of a church building in 1865, the congregation met for worship in a room above a 

store owned by John McRae.  The new church was built on the corner of Victoria Ave. and 

Chatham Street, and in 1866, the first regular minister, the Rev. Alexander Kemp, was inducted 

into the charge. In 1895, a fire destroyed the church building, and a new church (the current 

building) was constructed. On November 26, 2000 St. Andrew’s Church and Knox Church, 

Windsor were amalgamated.  

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1973-8059  1894-1898   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1992-8001  1894-1911   Baptisms (microfilm) 

2010-8025  1911-1959   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1973-8059  1862-1899   Marriages (microfilm) 

1993-8024  1862-1913   Marriages (microfilm) 

1994-8016  1913-1947   Marriages (microfilm) 

1995-8017  1947-1991   Marriages (microfilm) 

 

 

Session 

1973-8059  1857-1892   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1990-8012  1911-1987   Session minutes (microfilm) 

2010-8025  1987-2007   Session minutes (microfilm) 

2011-8007  2008-2010   Session minutes (microfilm) 

 

 

Board of Managers 

1973-8059  1887-1900   Board of Managers minutes (microfilm) 

 

 

Other Records 

1992-8001  1864-1868   Alex Bartlet's Journals (microfilm) 

 

 

Knox Presbyterian Church 

Session 

2011-8007  1989-2000   Session minutes (microfilm) 

 



 

Wingham, Ontario 

St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Wingham Presbyterian Church  was organized as a congregation in 1862 by the Rev. W. C. 

Young from the Presbytery of Huron.  The congregation met for worship in school houses, barns 

and other convenient buildings until land was acquired in 1866 and a frame church was 

completed in 1867.  A union session, representing congregations from Wingham, Bluevale and 

Eadie's, was formed in 1866 and the Rev. James Hastie was inducted as minister serving the three 

congregations until 1871.  An addition was added to the church a few years later as the 

congregation grew.  In 1876, the three-point charge was dissolved and Wingham called their own 

minister, the Rev. James Pritchard.  In 1881 Wingham Presbyterian Church was destroyed by fire 

and a new brick church was completed the following year on another site more central within the 

growing town of Wingham.  About 1895 the congregation adopted the name "St. Andrew's".  In 

1925 the congregation voted to remain within the Presbyterian Church and the following year, St. 

Andrew's Wingham and the congregation of Belgrave were made a two-point charge.  This 

arrangement continued until 1933 when St. Andrew's Wingham once again became a single 

charge. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1984-8016  1876-1953   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1993-8031  1953-1993   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1984-8016  1896-1976   Marriages (microfilm) 

1993-8031  1976-1993   Marriages (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1976-4004-1-1  1938;1952;1962;1949;   Orders of Service 

1976       Conventicle service; anniversary  

(unknown); rededication of church; 

burning of mortgage, includes brief 

historical sketch 

1993-8031  1987    Order of Service (microfilm) 

          125
th
 Anniversary 

1993-8031  June 1925    Order of Service (microfilm) 

          Pre-Assembly Congress 

 

1976-4004-1-2  1877-1880   Pew Rents Account Book 

 

Publications and Histories 

1976-4004-1-3  1916    Jubilee Souvenir 

Includes historical sketch, 44pp., ill., 

(2 copies) 

1999-4023  1962    St. Andrew’s Presbyterian Church,  

Wingham, Ontario, Centennial Year 

1962. 

  



 

Winnipeg, Manitoba 

Kildonan Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

Kildonan Presbyterian Church in Winnipeg, Ontario was founded in 1851 when the Rev. John 

Black arrived as minister to the Presbyterian settlers of Lord Selkirk's Red River Settlement. He 

conducted his first service (the first service conducted by an ordained Presbyterian minister west 

of the Great Lakes) on September 28
th
, 1851. The settlers had built a manse for Rev. Black in 

early 1851. Construction on a church was begun soon after, however, the flood of 1852 delayed 

the building, and it wasn't until January 1854 that the new church was opened. Mission work to 

surrounding areas was conducted and by 1862, another missionary, the Rev. James Nisbet, was 

sent to the area to assist Rev. Black. Rev. Nisbet helped raise funds for the construction of a 

church school in  1864. In 1866, Rev. Nisbet moved on to further mission work in the west. Rev. 

Black served the congregation until his death in 1882.  

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1982-8012  1851-1922   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1982-8012  1851-1936   Marriages (microfilm) 

1982-8012  1851-1932   Burials (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1982-8012  1851-1925   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1975-4027  1951    Order of Service – 100
th
 Anniversary 

1975-4027  1952    Order of Service – 100
th
 Anniversary 

 

Board of Managers 

1982-8012  1928-1962   Board of Managers minutes (microfilm) 

 

Congregation 

1982-8012  1918-1960   Congregational  minutes (microfilm) 

 

Publications and Histories 

1975-4027  1926    Kildonan Church: 75
th
 Anniversary 

           4 pgs. 

1975-4027  1951    The Story of Kildonan Presbyterian  

       Church, 1851-1951 

           16 pgs., ill. 

1975-4027  1951    Story of Kildonan Presbyterian Church 

           by Kenneth Haig, 33pgs. 

1975-4027  1951    Pamphlet – Kildonan Centenary  

       Celebration: List of Services, Sept. 28 to  

       Oct. 1, 1951 

 

 

 

 



 

1975-4027  1965    Historical Narration: Script for first part  

       of telecast "The Story of Kildonan  

       Church" 

           Broadcast over Station C-JAY,  

           Winnipeg. 

1975-4027  [196-?]    Pamphlet – Welcome to Kildonan  

       Presbyterian Church 

 



 

Winnipeg, Manitoba 

St. James Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

St. James Presbyterian Church in Winnipeg, Manitoba was established in 1925. The church was 

formed by those members of the original Presbyterian church in St. James (now part of 

Winnipeg) that voted against joining the United Church of Canada.  For three years the 

congregation was without a church and met for worship in Roseberry Hall. In 1928, a building 

was constructed and opened on October 19, 1928. 

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1988-8030  1925-1986   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1988-8030  1925-1986   Marriages (microfilm) 

1988-8030  1925-1986   Deaths (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1988-8030  1948-1983   Session minutes (microfilm) 

 

Congregation 

1988-8030  1925-1987   Congregational Meeting minutes  

       (microfilm) 

 

Histories and Publications 

1984-4022  1950, 1953, 1970  Various historical sketches. 

 

Other records 

1988-8030  1925-1988   Various historical records and  

       memorabilia (microfilm) 

 



 

Winslow, Quebec 

St. John's Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

St. John's Presbyterian Church in Winslow, Quebec, dates from at least the mid-1860s. 

Established within the "Free" Presbyterian Church, it became part of The Presbyterian Church in 

Canada in 1875. In appears to have closed c. 1920. 

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1984-8005  1864-1920   Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths  

       (microfilm) 

   - also on microfilm #1999-8008 

Session 

1999-8009  1878-1920   Session minutes (microfilm) 

 

Board of Managers 

1999-8009  1889-1912   Board of Managers minutes (microfilm) 

 



 

Winterbourne, Ontario 

Chalmers Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Presbyterians in Winterbourne (Woolwich ON) met for worship as early as 1829.  The 

congregation gathered in houses, a nearby hotel and in a log school house until they could erect a 

church building in 1837.  The congregation's first minister was the Rev. Alexander Ross who had 

been sent to Canada by the Glasgow Society and had settled in Woolwich in 1841.  The 

Disruption of 1844 caused a split in the "Auld Kirk" congregation. 

 

The group choosing to join the Free Church, known as Chalmers' Church, after worshipping in 

the school house and sharing space in the Auld Kirk, built the Lecture Room in 1848, located 

behind the present Chalmers' Church.  They had no minister and services were conducted by 

Knox students and the session.  In 1856 and 1857 a Rev. A. Constable Geikee preached to the 

congregations of Chalmers' and Berlin, however, this arrangement ceased when efforts failed 

upon his formal call as minister.   The Rev. George Cuthbertson was inducted as Chalmers' first 

minister in 1857 serving until 1862.  In 1862, part of the congregation left to form a separate 

Elmira congregation. 

 

The part of the original congregation choosing to continue under the Church of Scotland were led 

by the Rev. James Shour from 1854 to 1867 and were known as St. Andrew's, Woolwich,  A 

stone manse was purchased in 1854. 

 

In 1876, Chalmers' and St. Andrew's were formally re-united as one church, continuing under the 

name of Chalmers', with the Rev. A.M. Hamilton serving as minister from 1877 to 1917.  In 1925 

Chalmers' voted to remain within the Presbyterian Church. 

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

Note 

An Ontario Genealogical Society transcript of Birth, Baptisms and Marriages for the Free 

Presbyterian Church of Chalmers has been placed in the Reference Collection.   

 

File No.  Date    Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1973-8060  1856-1900   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1991-8024  1939-1989   Baptisms (microfilm) 

1987-4011-1-1  1896 Nov.-1917  Marriages 

Rev. A.M. Hamilton retired to Guelph 

in 1918 and from then until 1939 he 

continued to enter marriages in this 

register.  In 1925 he entered the 

United Church 

1973-8060  1858    Marriages (microfilm) 

1991-8024  1938-1991   Marriages (microfilm) 

1973-8060  1876    Deaths (microfilm) 

          only one entry 

 



 

Session 

1973-8060  1857-1899   Session minutes (microfilm) 

1991-8024  1918-1973   Session minutes (microfilm) 

 

Board of Managers 

1987-4011-1-2  1881-1916   Financial Statements 

   Very fragile 

 

Publications and Histories 

1987-4011-1-3  1949    Historical Sketch 

   14pp., manuscript 

 



 

Woodstock, Ontario 

Knox Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Knox Presbyterian Church (Woodstock, Ont.) was organized in 1838 by the Rev. Alexander Gale 

as a part of the Church of Scotland. The first minister was the Rev. Daniel Allen who served the 

joint charge of Woodstock and Stratford until 1840 when he chose to serve Stratford alone. A 

church building was finished in 1842 and named St. Andrew’s. During the Disruption, St. 

Andrew’s remained with the Church of Scotland and a majority of the congregation chose to join 

the Free Church. A new church building was completed in 1850 and named Knox. The first 

minister of Knox the Free Church congregation, was the Rev. William Servos Ball. St. Andrew’s 

Presbyterian Church united with Knox Church in 1865. A new church building was finished in 

1897. Knox Presbyterian Church chose to remain with The Presbyterian Church in Canada during 

the time of Church Union in 1925.  

 

 

File No.  Date     Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1973-8061  [1845?]-1900    Baptisms (microfilm) 

1984-4006-1-1  1947 Feb.-1961 Aug.   Baptisms 

1973-8061  1858-1869, 1897-1899   Marriages (microfilm) 

 

Session 

1973-8061  1846-1900    Session minutes (microfilm) 

1973-8061  1855-1903    Communion Rolls (microfilm) 

1984-4006-1-2  1897;1934;1953;1958;1960  Orders of Service 

Services for the dedication of 

the stained glass windows 

which includes 8 baptisms for 

the year 1958 as well as 

specifications for the pipe 

organ; order of service for the 

Sunday before the coronation 

of the Queen; rededication of 

the civic war memorial 

 

Trustees 

1973-8061  1848-1899    Trustee minutes 

 

Congregation 

1984-4006-1-3  1888     Annual Report 

1984-4006-1-4  1926-1927;1932-1935;1938  Annual Report 

1984-4006-1-5  [c. 1970]    Congregational Directory 

1984-4006-1-6  1961     Congregational Correspondence 

1984-4006-1-7  1881     Bill No. 47 

An Act to vest certain lands in 

the Town of Woodstock to the 

Trustees, and to authorize a 

sale of the same. 



 

1984-4006-1-8  1842     Summons for debt to church 

2001-4026  1916, 1925    Congregational correspondence 

 

Organizations of the Congregation 

1984-4006-1-9  1967     Centennial Project Knox Church  

Ladies Aid. A centennial 

history of the Ladies Aid in 

the congregation, 70pp. ill., 

1967 

1984-4006-1-10  1928     Sunday School Report 

 

Publications and Histories 

1984-4006-1-11  1934     Presbyterianism in Woodstock 

History of both Knox and 

Chalmers congregations, with 

Chalmers entering into the 

United Church of Canada in 

1925, 14pp., ill., 2 copies 

 

 



 

Woodstock, New Brunswick 

St. Paul's Presbyterian Church 
 

 

Historical Sketch 

St. Paul's Presbyterian Church in Woodstock, New Brunswick was formed in 1867. However, the 

congregation appears to have origins several decades earlier when a church was built by 

Presbyterians in the village of Upper Woodstock. This early church, called St. Andrew's, was 

built in 1838 and appears to have been linked with the Presbyterian church in Richmond, N.B., 

sharing a minister.  For some reason, it was decided in 1867 that a new church in the town of 

Woodstock (incorporated in 1856) would be built and the old church was abandoned.  The new 

church took several years to construct and was finally dedicated in 1872.  At the time of Church 

Union in 1925, the congregation voted to remain within The Presbyterian Church in Canada. 

During the pastorate of Rev. Robert Ross, 1966-1977, a new manse was constructed and a 

Christian Education wing was added to the church.  

 

Note: the church in Richmond appears to have become a United Church in 1925. 

 

Access Restrictions 

Items identified with an asterisk (*) are restricted. Permission to view them must be received 

from the Session of St. Paul's Presbyterian Church, Woodstock, N.B. 

 

File No.  Date    Description 
 

Vital Statistics 

1993-8033  1849-1857, 1918-1922  Baptisms (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1918-1922   Deaths (microfilm) 

 

Session 

*1993-8033  1889-1978   Session minutes (microfilm) 

*1993-8033  1926-1987   Session correspondence (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1978-1982   Communion Roll (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1911    List of witnesses to the Call of a new  

       minister 

1993-8033  [1925?]    Notice and membership list used to  

       conduct vote on Church Union 

*1993-8033  1926-1984   Certificates of Transfer and Membership  

       (microfilm) 

 

Board of Trustees  

*1993-8033  1867-1879, 1917-1932  Board of Trustees minutes (microfilm) 

*1993-8033  1934-1985   Board of Trustees minutes (includes  

       Board of Managers, Congregational  

       Meeting minutes and Annual  

       Statements) (microfilm) 

*1993-8033  1963-1975, 1978-1990  Board of Trustees annual reports  

       (microfilm) 

*1993-8033  1923-1975 (with gaps)  Expenditures and Receipts 

*1993-8033  1982    Act re: Trustee Board and land  

       conveyance (microfilm) 



 

 

Congregational Organizations 

1993-8033  1887-1914, 1923-1934  WMS minutes (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1958-1989   WMS minutes (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1897-1914   WMS Treasurers book (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1903-1914 (with gaps)  WMS Reports, addresses (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1973, 1976-1980  Ladies Auxiliary minutes (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1969-1979   Ladies Auxiliary annual reports  

       (microfilm) 

*1993-8033  1975-1984   Outreach Committee minutes  

       (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1939-1944. 1965-1990  St. Paul's Guild minutes 

1993-8033  1969-1978, 1980-1982  St. Paul's Guild annual reports  

       (microfilm) 

1993-8033  1929-1942   St. Paul's Guild history notes and  

       treasurers records (microfilm) 

 

 



 

Woodville, Ontario 

Woodville Community Presbyterian Church 
 

Historical Sketch 

Woodville Community Presbyterian Church (Ont.) was officially organized in 1848 as a part of 

the Presbyterian Church of Canada. The congregation is first called Eldon and Mariposa. The 

congregation was a united charge (three point) with Eldon and Thorah. The Rev. John McTavish 

was the first minister and was inducted July 27, 1854. Woodville was a two point charge with 

Beaverton until 1861 when Woodville became a separate charge and from then had occasional 

union with Fenelon. In 1936 Woodville became a 2 pt. charge with Eldon. In 1937, the name 

changed to Knox Presbyterian Church (Woodville, Ont.). At the end of 1995, St. Andrew's, South 

Eldon closed its doors.  January 1, 1996 saw them amalgamated with Knox, Woodville.  At the 

same time they took on a new name "Woodville Community Presbyterian Church".  

 

Access Restrictions 

Session minutes are restricted for a period of 50 years from the date they were written. 

 

Note 

Accession 1996-4004 is related to South Eldon, but unprocessed.  

 

File No.  Date     Description 

 

Vital Statistics 

1988-4010-1-1  1844 Mar.-1925    Baptisms 

Includes Baptisms for Eldon, 

Mariposa and Fenelon Falls.  

Also includes 4 deaths and 

record of expenses of student 

supply 

1992-4049  1916-1989    Baptisms 

           Knox Presbyterian Church  

   (Woodville, Ont.) 

1988-4010-1-5  1858 Feb.-1940 May   Marriages 

(Oversize)  Includes 

marriages from Beaverton, 

Mariposa, Fenelon Falls and 

Eldon 

1988-4010-1-1  [188-?];1946    Deaths 

Four entries only. Contained 

in Baptisms 184-1925 

 

Session 

1988-4010-1-2  1861May-1910 Feb.   Session Minutes 

Session minutes of Thorah 

and Eldon Free Church 1849 

Sept.-1861 Apr.; and 

Woodville, 1861 May-1910 

Feb. 

1988-4010-1-3  [c. 1850-1860]    List of Members 

   12pp. 



 

1994-4017  1927     Order of Service 

           78
th
 Anniversary 

 

Congregation 

1988-4010-1-4  1872 Mar.-1942 Jan.   Board of Managers and  

Congregational Minutes  

Deacons Court until 1892 

Feb.; includes congregational 

meetings 1925-1942 

1994-4017  1899-1900; 1902-1940; 1942  Annual Reports 

 

Board of Managers 

1988-4010-1-4  1872 Mar.-1942 Jan.   Board of Managers and  

Congregational Minutes  

Deacons Court until 1892 

Feb.; includes congregational 

meetings 1925-1942 

 

 

Organizations of the Congregation 

1973-4088  1933-1941    Young People’s Society minutes 

 

Publications and Histories 

1973-4088  1924     The Founding of Woodville  

Presbyterian Church. By R. A. 

MacKay. 1924. 47pp. ill. 

 

Records of St. Andrew’s Presbyterian Church (South Eldon, Ont.) 1848-1996 
 

Vital Statistics 

1988-4010-1-1  1844-1925    Baptisms 

Entries for Eldon appear in 

the register for Woodville, 

Ontario  Woodville 

Presbyterian Church 

1980-8004  1888-1892    Baptisms (microfilm) 

1976-4008-1-1  1869;1873    Births 

This format consists of a slip 

of paper containing two birth 

entries, loose leaf 

1976-4008-1-2  1858 Jan.-1872 Mar.   Marriages 

   Oversize 

1988-4010-1-5  1858-1951    Marriages 

Entries for Eldon appear in 

the register for Woodville, 

Ontario  Woodville 

Presbyterian Church 

 



 

Session 

1988-4010-1-3  1849-1861    Session Minutes 

           Also contains Session Minutes  

for Woodville, 1861-1910 

1976-4008-1-3  1860 June    Session minutes 

   Loose leaf, fragile 

1976-4008-1-4  1860-1861;1873 Apr.-1877 Aug. Session minutes 

1996-4004  1867, 1887-1995   Session minutes (2 books) 

1976-4008-1-5  1867-1872    Minutes of Joint Meetings 

Loose leaf, fragile, dates are 

not inclusive 

1980-8004  1888-1981    Session minutes (microfilm) 

1976-4008-1-6  1877     Communion Roll 

   Loose leaf, one sheet 

1996-4004       Communion Roll  

           1891-1969 missing 

1976-4008-1-7  [18--]     Elder's Collection Rolls 

   Loose leaf, three sheets 

1976-4008-1-8  [187-?]     Pew Rents 

   Loose leaf, fragile 

1976-4008-1-9  1870-1872    Pew Rental Book 

   Includes names of occupants 

1976-4008-1-10  1870;[18--?]    Subscription Lists for Minister's  

salary. See also Minister's 

Salary Account 

1976-4008-1-11  1872-1873    Subscription List for  

Sustentation Fund 

Small booklets and one loose 

sheet 

1976-4008-1-12  1867;1876    Subscription Record Book 

Contains subscriptions for : 

building a shed, bible society 

and the Synod Temporalities 

Fund 

1976-4008-1-13  1867-1874    Subscription Record Book 

Subscription for minister's 

salary and for repairing the 

church and manse, includes 

1867 minute of joint meeting 

1976-4008-1-14  1960     Statistical Reports 

   Photocopies 

 

 

Congregation 

1976-4008-1-16  1881 Apr.-1888 Feb.   Congregational Minutes 

Also includes an Account 

Book 1880-1888, oversize 

1976-4008-2-1  1888 Sept.-1902 Apr.   Board of Managers and  

   Congregational Minutes 

1980-8004  1914-1963    Congregational minutes  

   (microfilm) 



 

1976-4008-2-2  1934-1935;1947   Annual Reports 

   Photocopies 

1996-4004  1927-1975    Congregational and Board of  

   Trustees Meeting minutes 

 

Board of Managers 

1976-4008-2-1  1888 Sept.-1902 Apr.   Board of Managers and  

   Congregational Minutes 

1976-4008-2-3  [1939]     Board of Managers Minutes 

   Loose leaf, photocopy 

1996-4004  1963-1996    Board of Mangers Meeting  

   minutes 

1996-4004  1914-1931    Board of Managers and  

Congregational Minutes 

   Poor condition  

1976-4008-2-4  1863-1873    Board of Managers  

Correspondence 

Correspondence regarding the 

minister's salary 

1976-4008-2-5  1876     Building Contract 

   Not original  

1976-4008-2-6  [18--?]     Collection Book 

Includes accounts for 

minister's stipend and church 

repairs, fragile 

1976-4008-2-7  1865-1871    Minister's Salary Account 

Not inclusive, loose leaf, 

fragile 

1976-4008-2-8  1872-1873;[18--]-[1873]  Miscellaneous accounts 

   Loose leaf, fragile 

1996-4004  1903-1995    Receipts and Expenses 

           (oversize) 

 

 

Board of Trustees 

1976-4008-1-15  1874 Dec.-1875 Nov.   Board of Trustees Minutes 

Also includes Congregational 

Minutes 1874;1877 

1976-4008-2-9  1877 Oct.    Board of Trustees Minutes 

1976-4008-2-10  1873     Board of Trustees  

   Correspondence 

1976-4008-2-11  1844     Board of Trustees  

Memo regarding membership 

of Trustees at the organization 

of the congregation; not 

original 

 

 

Organizations of the Congregation 

1976-4008-2-12  1926;1928    W.M.S. Annual Reports 

   Photocopies 



 

1996-4004  1919-1920; 1934-1995   W.M.S. Minutes 

1996-4004  1939-1995    W.M.S. Financial records 

1996-4004  1995     W.M.S. History 

 

Publications and Histories 

1996-4004  1994     Historical Sketch 



 

Wyoming, Ontario 

St. Andrew’s Presbyterian Church 

 
Historical Sketch 

St. Andrew’s Presbyterian Church (Wyoming, Ont.) was established in 1866. The first minister 

was the Rev. Walter M Roger. From the beginning of its existence, St. Andrew’s was a joint 

charge with Petrolia, this union was dissolved in 1871. A church building was opened in 1869. In 

1875, St. Andrew’s was united with South Plympton. This union lasted until 1925, when St. 

Andrew’s joined with St. John’s, Aberarder. In May 1930 a new church building was opened.  

 

 

File No.  Date    Description 

 

Session 

1977-4001-1-6  1866-1871   Session minutes 

Contained in Session minutes of 

Petrolia Presbyterian Church, 1867-

1904 

 

Publications and Histories 

1973-4128  1955, 1966   Histories 


